

# Safeguarding Policy, Code of Practice, Procedures and Safer Recruitment

Last Reviewed	Friday 26 <sup>th</sup> July 2024
Last Updated	Friday 26 <sup>th</sup> July 2024

Designated Safeguarding Lead	Judith King
(DSL)	admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk

## If you have a concern about a child, young person or vulnerable adult, you must report your concern as soon as possible to the DSL

Methods of Reporting:

- 1) In Person
- 2) By email: <a href="mailto:admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk">admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk</a>
- 3) Through completion of a Concern Form

#### **Table of Contents**

Safeguarding Policy Statement
Safeguarding Policy
Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour
The Responsibilities of Teachers, Staff and Volunteers
Respect with Children and Young People
Inclusion and Diversity
Appropriate and Inappropriate Behaviour
Guidance on Mobile Phones, Cameras, IT and Digital Communication
One-to-One Teaching
Physical Contact with Students
Online Teaching
Upholding the Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour
Understanding Abuse and Reporting Concerns
Reporting a Concern
Responding to a child making allegations of abuse14
Allegations or concerns about a teacher, staff member, or volunteer
Allegations Against a Child 16   Keeping Records 16   Talking to a child who tells you they have behaved abusively 17   Responding to Incidents 17
Whistleblowing17
Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults
Safer Recruitment Policy
Advertising, Interview and Selection19
Induction19
All tutors, teachers, staff and deputy teachers are required to:
Annual Review
Policy Review

# Safeguarding Policy Statement

Bromley Conservatoire is the trading name for Apollo Learning Ltd. and is an organisation dedicated to providing music, primary tuition, language, drama and arts education to the public. This policy and its guidelines are specifically directed towards children.

For this policy, a child is defined as anyone under the age of 18.

All tutors and staff employed or contracted by Bromley Conservatoire must adhere to this policy and its guidelines. In their roles at Bromley Conservatoire, teachers and staff will frequently interact with children.

Bromley Conservatoire recognises its duty to uphold the highest standards of conduct and best practices concerning child safety. It also understands that robust safeguarding and child protection policies not only protect children but also safeguard Bromley Conservatoire teachers and staff from misunderstandings or inaccurate accusations.

Bromley Conservatoire is dedicated to implementing practices that shield children from harm. We believe that everyone has a duty to promote the welfare and safety of all children and young people, ensuring they are protected in all aspects, regardless of age, disability, gender reassignment, race, religion or belief, sex, or sexual orientation.

All Bromley Conservatoire tutors and staff who interact with children must:

- Acknowledge and accept their duty to protect any children under their care and within their professional scope.
- Cultivate an understanding of the issues that can harm children and be able to identify signs of the four main types of abuse: emotional, physical, sexual, and neglect.
- Be vigilant of 'grooming' behaviours, which are actions taken to befriend children as a precursor to abuse.
- Promptly report any concerns following Bromley Conservatoire's established procedures for reporting safeguarding issues.

Bromley Conservatoire commits to protecting children by:

- Implementing a Safeguarding Code of Practice for all Bromley Conservatoire tutors and staff.
- Implementing a procedure for reporting safeguarding concerns.
- Reporting any concerns to the appropriate authorities.

# Safeguarding Policy

Bromley Conservatoire's policy includes the following points:

- 1. All staff and tutors at Bromley Conservatoire are responsible for the welfare of children they interact with during their work and must report any concerns regarding a child's well-being or another individual's behaviour, following established procedures.
- 2. A Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) at Bromley Conservatoire is responsible for acting on any raised concerns, ensuring clear lines of responsibility for child protection.
- 3. The DSL is knowledgeable about making appropriate referrals to statutory child protection agencies.
- 4. All Bromley Conservatoire staff and tutors in contact with children during their work at Bromley Conservatoire must follow the Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour and the Safeguarding Reporting Procedures outlined in this policy, along with any other relevant guidance issued by Bromley Conservatoire.
- 5. Bromley Conservatoire is dedicated to safer recruitment through stringent practices detailed in the safer recruitment policy and procedures.
- 6. Information about any allegation or disclosure should be recorded clearly and promptly, with established procedures dictating who records this information and the timelines for passing it on.
- 7. According to the Children Act 1989, the 'welfare of the child is paramount', meaning confidentiality considerations in other situations should not override the need to protect children from harm. Efforts should be made to maintain confidentiality for all parties when an allegation is made and under investigation.

This Safeguarding and Child Protection Policy will be referenced or included in recruitment, training, and policy documents where appropriate. The policy will be made widely available to teachers, staff, volunteers, and parents and actively promoted within the organization. A culture of mutual respect between children and Bromley Conservatoire teachers and staff will be encouraged, with adults setting a good example.

As part of Bromley Conservatoire's duty of care towards children, teachers and staff who encounter child protection concerns in their work will be supported when they report their concerns in good faith.

# Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour

This code of behaviour is a policy which outlines the conduct that Bromley Conservatoire expects from all staff working for or with Bromley Conservatoire. This policy applies to all staff, including:

- Managers
- Designated Safeguarding Leads
- Administration Staff
- Receptionists
- Tutors and Teachers
- Volunteers
- Temporary Staff
- Interns and Students
- Contractors and Employees
- Everyone undertaking duties for Bromley Conservatoire (paid or unpaid)

We have created this policy to help us protect children and young people from abuse.

Bromley Conservatoire is responsible for making sure everyone undertaking duties from Bromley Conservatoire has read, understood and agreed to follow the code of behaviour and they understand the consequences of inappropriate behaviour.

#### The Responsibilities of Teachers, Staff and Volunteers

The following points outline your responsibilities:

- Prioritising the welfare of children and young people
- Providing an environment that is safe for children and young people
  - Ensuring equipment is used safely and for its intended purpose
  - Having good awareness of issues to do with safeguarding and child protection and acting when appropriate.
- Following all our principles, policies and procedures outlined in this document
- Modelling good behaviour for children and young people to follow
- Challenging all inappropriate behaviour and reporting any breaches of the Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour to the DSL (<u>admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk</u>)
- Reporting all concerns about abusive behaviour, following our safeguarding and child protection procedures. This includes inappropriate behaviour displayed by an adult or child and directed at anybody of any age.
- Always staying within the law

## Respect with Children and Young People

You should:

- Always listen to and respect children
- Set clear behavioural expectations to ensure children behave in a respectful manner towards you
- Value and take children's contributions seriously, involving them in planning activities where possible and appropriate
- Respect a young person's right to personal privacy as far as is possible. If you need to break confidentiality to follow child protection procedures, it is important to explain this to the child or young person at the earliest opportunity.

### Inclusion and Diversity

- All young people and children must be treated in a fair manner without discrimination or prejudice
- If discrimination or prejudice is witnessed, you should challenge it or report it to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).
- Encourage all children, young people and adults to speak out about behaviour or attitudes that makes them uncomfortable in any way.
- Understand that children and young people have individual needs and may react differently to teaching styles, behaviour and attitudes.
- Respect all differences in culture, race, religious beliefs, religious systems, ethnicity, disability, gender and sexual orientation.
- Understand that all participants in a group/organisation can bring something different, valuable and unique to the conversation.

## Appropriate and Inappropriate Behaviour

The following grid shows compares appropriate behaviour (what you should do) with the inappropriate counterpart (what you should not do).

Appropriate Behaviour What you <b>SHOULD</b> do	Inappropriate Behaviour What you <b>SHOULD NOT</b> do
Value all children and young people equally	Show favouritism
Be patient with others	Not take into consideration age and learning needs when interacting with children and young people

Exercise caution when discussing sensitive issues with children or young people and involve parents where possible	Discuss sensitive issues that are not related to the organisation e.g. politics, divisive issues, etc.
Ensure your contact with children and young people is relevant to the nature of the activity you are involved in	Engage in conversation and activities that are inappropriate or irrelevant
Ensure wherever possible, there is more than one adult present during activities with children or young people	Encourage parents or other members of staff to leave the room when engaging in activities with children or young people
Follow our policy on one-to-one teaching when alone with children or young people	Prioritise your own teaching preferences over the policy
If spending individual time with children or young people outside of timetabled lessons, ensure other staff members know where you are	Meet with children or young people alone without letting anybody know
Only provide personal care in an emergency and ensure more than one adult is present if possible	Provide personal care either by request or otherwise that is not an emergency
Never engage in behaviour which could be construed as "grooming" a child	Give a child money, presents or favours or talking or behaving in an unprofessional manner around children
If you give a student a car ride, you must inform the DSL as soon as possible	Offer a student a car ride, except in emergencies
Only socialise with children on Bromley Conservatoire premises or Bromley Conservatoire events	Arrange to socialise with children outside of Bromley Conservatoire / Bromley Conservatoire events
Meet with under 18s only at Bromley Conservatoire / Bromley Conservatoire events	Meet under 18s at their home or invite them to your home
Give all students an equal amount of attention and if giving small gifts (e.g. for Christmas) distribute to all of your students	Give specific students special gifts, favours or unnecessary individual attention
Address students by their first, preferred name	Address students by nicknames, pet names, deadnames, last names or names they do not like

Always avoid risk-taking and risky activities to the best of your ability	Take unnecessary risks
Set a good example to children and young people by not smoking, drinking alcohol or abusing drugs	Smoke, vape, consume alcohol, use illegal substances or be under the influence of alcohol or illegal substances
Develop healthy, responsible and appropriate relationships with children and young people	Develop inappropriate relationships with children and young people
Avoid making unrealistic promises to children and young people	Make inappropriate promises to children and young people
Aspire to be a respectful, responsible and approachable member of staff	Engage in abusive, threating or intrusive behaviour or act in a way that could be perceived as such
Report any form of sexual contact with a child or young person that you witness or hear of to the DSL	Engage in any form of sexual contact with a child or young person
Communicate with children or young people only in-person at Bromley Conservatoire, via digital reports or via the child or young person's parent	Let children and young people have your personal contact details (including mobile number, email address and postal address)
Report any attempts by a child or young person to contact you via social media	Contact a child or young person via social media
Support and encourage children and young people	Patronise or belittle children and young people
Use language and gestures that are respectful, non-biased and inclusive	Make comments or gestures that are, or could pe perceived as, sarcastic, insensitive, sexually suggestive or derogatory

## Guidance on Mobile Phones, Cameras, IT and Digital Communication

- Do not take images or videos of children and young people on a personal device. This includes taking images or videos of non-identifiable features of a child or young person e.g. hands, throat, arms, posture or stance.
- Do not accept any images or videos of children or young people from parents or carers. If you receive any images or videos of children or young people, please report this to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk) as soon as possible.
- If taking a video or image of a child or young person is required for teaching and learning, please use their parent or carers device. A device may be able to be provided by Bromley Conservatoire on request.
- Do not give out your contact details to children or young people in any circumstance, except for emergency, in which case the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk) must be informed.
- Do not communicate with children or young people directly via any form of digital communication. This includes text, instant messaging, phone call, video call, email and social media. If there is an exceptional circumstance, prior consent from the child or young person's parent or carer must be obtained and the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk) informed. If electronic communication is necessary, you must communicate directly with the parent/carer or, more appropriately, via the Bromley Conservatoire email address (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk), which will act as an intermediary.
- For guidance regarding online lessons, please see the online lessons policy in this document.

## One-to-One Teaching

It is important that teachers and tutors are aware with the risks associated with teaching children and young people alone.

It is good practice for another person to be able to view a one-to-one lesson at any time. For this reason, we have the following requirement in place:

# Teachers and tutors are required to allow their student's parent or carer to sit in the room for the duration of the lesson. Teachers and tutors must not state or imply anything to the contrary.

This requirement also includes group classes that consist of only one student.

Parents, carers, receptionists and the DSL must all be aware of when and where oneto-one teaching is taking place. Therefore, all lessons and the associated times and locations must be pre-agreed and recorded in Bromley Conservatoire's administration system: TutorCruncher.

Teachers must not adjust lesson times without agreement in advance with a director or member of the Bromley Conservatoire administration team.

### Physical Contact with Students

It is important that teachers, tutors, students, children and young people are clear about safe and appropriate physical contact. It is important for teachers and tutors to feel confident and comfortable in creating and providing a safe and caring environment for all students, especially children and young people.

#### Acceptable and unacceptable physical contact with students

There are only a small number of circumstances where physical contact between a teacher or tutor and a student is acceptable. Physical contact should only occur when it is absolutely necessary and in line with the Bromley Conservatoire guidelines on safe physical contact with children and young people.

Teachers and tutors should be mindful of the power imbalance between a teacher and a student. A child may feel they cannot say no when permission is sought, even if a parent is present. It is for this reason physical contact should be avoided unless absolutely necessary.

Physical contact may be required in the following situations:

- To avoid accident in an emergency
- To protect from imminent danger
- If a young child needs assistance or comfort after a fall or injury
- Holding the hand of a young child at the front or back of a group when supervising the move between teaching locations or event venues

Physical contact should be avoided when teaching or tutoring unless absolutely necessary.

#### Physical Contact When Teaching or Tutoring One-to-One

When teaching or tutoring one-on-one, physical contact should <u>never</u> occur under any circumstances. Physical contact in this situation would be inappropriate. The only exception is to use physical contact to avoid accident in an emergency.

If physical contact occurs in any circumstances, you must report it to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).

Teachers or tutors may feel they need to make physical contact with a student to demonstrate a technique or to enhance learning. Other strategies must be used, such as demonstration, clear instruction or use of a mirror.

If a parent or carer is present in a one-to-one lesson, you can consider it a group setting and refer to the "Physical Contact When Tutoring or Teaching in a Group Setting". Teachers and Tutors must seek verbal permission from both the parent or carer and the child or young person.

#### Physical Contact When Teaching or Tutoring in a Group Setting

Tutors and teachers should adhere to the following when teaching in a group setting:

- Be aware of how you physically interact with students as your actions could be misinterpreted. If a child shows discomfort with being touched, always modify your behaviour accordingly.
- Avoid touching a child below the shoulder unless there is a valid reason.
- Do not assume a child desires physical contact, even with very young children. Use your professional judgment in specific situations, considering the child's needs, age, developmental stage, gender, ethnicity, and background. Seek verbal permission from the student if possible.
- If you think an incident might have been misunderstood, report it to the DSL immediately.
- Be careful when comforting a distressed child with physical contact. Ensure it is never done in private. Use your professional judgment to comfort or reassure children while maintaining appropriate distance.
- Physical contact should only be used when necessary to help the student with the activity being taught. Always consider alternative ways of demonstrating or explaining first.
- Avoid touching a child around the ribs, chest, or diaphragm to teach breathing techniques.

#### Tutors or Teachers Responding to Students Making Physical Contact with Them

- Very young children may naturally show affection to teachers physically. However, once children attend classes without a parent or carer, they should be encouraged to express affection without physical contact.
- If a student of any age seeks physical contact or appears to want an intimate relationship with you, always discuss this with the DSL (<u>admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk</u>).
- In any situation where a child initiates inappropriate physical contact, it is the adult's responsibility to distance themselves and help the student understand personal boundaries.
- Children of any age may exhibit sexual behaviour. Always remember that inappropriate sexual behaviour could be a sign of abuse.

• Under the Sexual Offences Act 2003, it is a criminal offense for any person over 18 in a position of trust to engage in a sexual relationship with a student under 18. This is considered 'Abuse of Trust.' The law applies to anyone working in schools, paid or voluntary, regardless of whether they teach the student and even if both parties consent to the relationship.

## **Online Teaching**

Bromley Conservatoire does not typically offer online teaching or tutoring. However, on occasion online lessons are necessary due to student holiday, sickness, pandemic, etc.

Tutors and teachers must adhere to the Bromley Conservatoire safeguarding policy and code of behaviour when conducting online lessons. Specific guidance for online lessons is outlined below:

- Teachers and tutors must not give out or accept personal contact details to or from children or young people in any circumstance, except for emergency, in which case the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk) must be informed immediately.
- Video lessons must be conducted through the online video platform "TutorCruncher Video". All online lessons must be agreed in advance with an administration team member so that TutorCruncher video can be set up for that client.
- All video lessons will be automatically recorded for the safety of both students and tutors. Recordings will be stored securely in TutorCruncher and only viewed in the event of a safeguarding incident.
- Tutors and teachers must conduct online lessons from Bromley Conservatoire premises unless it is not safe to do so (e.g. pandemic, self-isolation, etc.). If an online lesson is not taking place at Bromley Conservatoire, an administration staff member should be informed.
- Online lessons should be conducted in a professional manner. Tutors and teachers must wear appropriate and professional clothing. Backgrounds must be professional or obfuscated using background filters. No inappropriate items should be in view.
- Online lessons must be conducted at the student's agreed-upon lesson slot, scheduled in TutorCruncher. This must happen to ensure safeguarding can be monitored.
- Students should wear appropriate clothing when receiving an online lesson. They should not receive the lesson in their bedroom or any other inappropriate space. Students should not have inappropriate items in view. If a tutor or teacher is concerned that any of the above is being violated, please terminate the call and inform the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).
- Students under the age of 18 must have a parent or carer present for the duration of the online lesson. To verify this, tutors and teachers should check in with the parent or carer at the start of the call. If a tutor or teacher is concerned

that the parent or carer is no longer present during the call, terminate the call and inform the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).

• If a safeguarding incident occurs during the online lesson that causes concern or a teacher or tutor feels at risk of allegation, they should terminate the call and inform the DSL immediately (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).

### Upholding the Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour

You should always follow this code of behaviour to safeguard children, young people, students, tutors and teachers. You should never rely on your reputation or that of Bromley Conservatoire to protect you.

If you have behaved inappropriately, you will be subject to one or more of the following, depending on the seriousness of the situation:

- Disciplinary action
- Immediate termination of your contract
- A report to statutory agencies such as the police and/or local authority child protection services

If you become aware of any breaches of this code, you must report them to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).

If necessary, you should follow our whistleblowing procedure and safeguarding and child protection procedures.

# Understanding Abuse and Reporting Concerns

## Reporting a Concern

If a child is in immediate danger, you should always call the Police at **999**. A teacher or tutor can report a concern to the Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) in the following ways:

- In person
- By email at <u>admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk</u>
- By completing a Concern form

The DSL will document all concerns as they arise, including completing a concern form if the teacher or tutor has not already done so, and will record any actions to be taken. The DSL will seek advice and make necessary referrals as soon as possible, within one week of the concerns being raised.

All teachers, tutors, staff, and volunteers should:

- Be alert to signs of four types of abuse (physical, sexual, emotional, and neglect) and report concerns to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk).
- Take any disclosure of abuse from a child seriously.
- Follow the Bromley Conservatoire procedures for responding to and reporting allegations of abuse against an adult or a child. Notify Bromley Conservatoire of any changes to their circumstances that may affect their suitability to work with children and vulnerable adults.
- Remember that abusers can be of any age, gender, ethnic background, or class, and avoid letting personal biases prevent appropriate action.

Bromley Conservatoire teachers, tutors and staff might have their suspicion or concern raised in several ways, including:

- 1. The conduct of another professional or adult.
- 2. A child disclosing abuse.
- 3. Evidence of physical harm, such as bruising.
- 4. Unusual behaviour by a child.

If a Bromley Conservatoire teacher, tutor or staff member has such concerns, they should report them immediately to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk). This applies whether the teacher or staff member is working in an employed or self-employed capacity. Bromley Conservatoire teachers, tutors and staff can always contact the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk). to discuss any safeguarding concerns, regardless of how they arise.

#### Responding to a child making allegations of abuse

Take any disclosure of abuse from a child seriously. It is crucial not to discourage children from disclosing abuse due to fear of not being believed and to listen attentively to what they have to say. Follow Bromley Conservatoire's procedure for reporting concerns and do not attempt to investigate the matter yourself.

- 1. Stay calm.
- 2. Listen carefully and show that you are taking the disclosure seriously.
- 3. Explain early on that the information will likely need to be shared with others and that you cannot promise confidentiality.
- 4. Assure the child that the information will only be shared with those who need to know.
- 5. Let the child speak at their own pace.
- 6. Ask questions only for clarification, avoiding any that suggest a particular answer.
- 7. Reassure the child that telling you was the right thing to do.
- 8. Inform them of the next steps and with whom the information will be shared.

- 9. Do not make any judgments about what you have heard.
- 10. Record what was said in writing as soon as possible, using the child's own words. Include the date, time, names mentioned, and to whom the information was given, and ensure the record is signed and dated.
- 11. Remember that while you may be the first to hear the allegation, it is not your responsibility to determine if abuse has occurred. That decision is for professional child protection agencies, following a referral from the Designated Safeguarding Lead.

# Allegations or concerns about a teacher, staff member, or volunteer

Concerns about a teacher, tutor, staff member, or any adult engaged by Bromley Conservatoire must be reported immediately to the DSL (<u>admin@bromley-</u> <u>conservatoire.co.uk</u>). The DSL must promptly inform the Local Authority Designated Officer (LADO) of any allegations that a staff member, teacher, tutor, or volunteer has:

- Behaved in a way that has harmed, or may have harmed, a child.
- Possibly committed a criminal offense against, or related to, a child.
- Behaved towards a child or children in a way that indicates they may pose a risk of harm.
- Behaved in a way that indicates they may not be suitable to work with children.

For all other concerns, the DSL will consider the raised issues and seek appropriate advice, which may include confidential discussions with professional advisers. They will then decide whether to report the matter to the LADO, handle it internally, or take no further action. If new information arises later that warrants a referral to the LADO, the DSL will make the referral.

Bromley LADO contact details:

- LADO@bromley.gov.uk
- 020 8461 7775

If a teacher, tutor or staff member feels unable to report a concern within Bromley Conservatoire, they should:

- 1. Contact the LADO directly.
- 2. Contact the NSPCC whistleblowing advice line: 0800 028 0285 or help@nspcc.org.uk.
- 3. Report the incident directly to the police.

Bromley Conservatoire has a legal obligation to refer to the Disclosure and Barring Service (DBS) anyone who leaves the organization because they harmed or might have been at risk of harming a child.

#### More information about the Bromley LADO referral process:

https://media.inzu.net/f0e9b37b8c44e338f64ae38c6d41e267/mysite/articles/604/A5\_ LADO\_Procedure\_Brochure\_8pp.pdf

#### Allegations Against a Child

There are various ways a child or young person may be abusive towards others, even without realising it:

- Bullying or cyberbullying
- Emotional abuse
- Online abuse
- Physical abuse
- Sexting
- Sexual abuse

When a child abuses another child, it is sometimes referred to as 'peer-on-peer abuse' or 'child-on-child abuse'. Children might also exhibit abusive behaviour towards adults. Concerns about a child's potentially abusive behaviour should be reported to the DSL (admin@bromley-conservatoire.co.uk) immediately, including relevant details (see "Keeping Records" below).

You might become aware of such concerns in several ways:

- A child or adult might directly allege abuse by a child or young person.
- A child or adult might express discomfort with a child or young person's behaviour. They may not realise that the behaviour is abusive.
- You, another teacher, staff member, or volunteer might observe behaviour that raises concern.
- A child or young person might confess to harming someone else or express the risk of doing so.

#### **Keeping Records**

It's important to keep accurate and detailed notes on any concerns you have about a child's behaviour.

Include:

- The child's details (name, age).
- The date and time of the incident.
- What was happening before the incident took place.
- What the child said or did that gave you cause for concern (write down their exact words if possible).
- Whether the behaviour appeared spontaneous or premeditated.

#### Talking to a child who tells you they have behaved abusively

If a child informs you directly that they have behaved abusively towards someone else:

Talk to them calmly and remember that they need support.

- Reassure the child that they've done the right thing by telling you about it.
- Listen carefully to the child and let them tell their whole story. Don't try to investigate or quiz the child, but make sure you understand what they're saying.
- Use non-judgmental language.
- Tell them that you now must do what you can to keep them, and the other children involved safe.
- Never promise to keep what a child tells you a secret. Explain that you will need to speak to other people who can help.
- Reassure the child that they can get help to change their behaviour and move forward with their life.
- You may want to suggest the child contacts Childline for support: 0800 1111.

#### **Responding to Incidents**

Sometimes you might see a child behaving inappropriately and decide to talk to them about this immediately, to manage the behaviour.

- Remember that they may not realise their behaviour is unacceptable.
- Talk to them calmly and explain why their behaviour is unsuitable and what they can do to improve it.
- Refer to the Bromley Conservatoire Code of Behaviour for guidance.

#### Whistleblowing

Whistleblowing involves reporting wrongdoing because it is in the public interest to reveal it. This typically concerns something observed at work but can also occur in other contexts. The wrongdoing might have occurred in the past, be ongoing, or be something the whistleblower fears may happen soon.

The NSPCC whistleblowing helpline should be contacted if a teacher, tutor, staff member, or volunteer is concerned that:

- Bromley Conservatoire or another organisation lacks clear safeguarding procedures.
- Concerns are not being addressed properly or are being covered up.
- A previously raised concern has not been acted upon.
- There is a fear of repercussions for raising a concern.

NSPCC whistleblowing helpline:

- 0800 028 0285
- help@nspcc.org.uk

# Safeguarding Vulnerable Adults

Adult abuse can happen to anyone who is over 18.

Safeguarding applies to an adult who:

- Has care and support needs (regardless of whether the local authority is meeting these needs)
- Is experiencing or at risk of abuse or neglect AND
- Is unable to protect themselves from the risk or experience of abuse or neglect due to their care and support needs

Such adults might:

- Be frail due to age, ill health, physical disability, cognitive impairment, or a combination of these
- Have a learning disability
- Have a physical disability and/or a sensory impairment
- Have mental health needs, including dementia or a personality disorder
- Have a long-term illness or condition
- Be users of substances or alcohol
- Lack the capacity to make decisions and require care and support

Abuse can be a one-time incident or happen repeatedly, affecting one or more individuals. Repeated poor care might indicate more serious issues, such as organizational abuse. Abuse can occur in any relationship and may cause significant harm or exploitation. It is often perpetrated by someone known to the victim and can result from intentional harm, neglect, failure to take appropriate action, or ignorance. Abuse can involve one or multiple individuals.

Adult abuse occurs when something is said or done to an at-risk adult that causes them to feel upset, hurt, or frightened. Abuse is not always intentional but causes harm, and action should be taken to prevent it from recurring.

If a teacher, tutor or staff member has concerns about an adult student or other adult at Bromley Conservatoire, they should report a concern in line with the Bromley Conservatoire procedures set out in this policy.

# Safer Recruitment Policy

Bromley Conservatoire is committed to safeguarding and protecting all children and young people through robust safer recruitment practices:

- 1. Identifying and rejecting applicants who are unsuitable to work with children and young people
- 2. Responding to concerns about the suitability of applicants during the recruitment process
- 3. Responding to concerns about the suitability of employees and volunteers once they have begun their role
- 4. Ensuring all new staff and volunteers participate in an induction which includes child protection

#### Advertising, Interview and Selection

All tutors, teachers, staff and deputy teachers (as freelance contractors, Bromley Conservatoire teachers and tutors are entitled to provide a deputy) are selected via interview.

- 1. Bromley Conservatoire's commitment to safeguarding must be clearly stated in any adverts for teacher, tutor or staff positions.
- 2. Interviews must be carried out by at least one person who has complete safer recruitment training.
- 3. Set safeguarding questions are asked during interview with answers reviewed by directors to establish whether additional training would be required.
- 4. Two references must be followed up for each candidate with questions related to safeguarding included.
- 5. Teachers and tutors will be asked to provide their most recent relevant qualifications. These will be cross-checked with their CV.
- 6. All teachers, tutors and staff members are required to complete a self-disclosure form to disclose previous convictions.

Any tutor, teacher, volunteer or member of staff who has not completed the above procedures will be accompanied by another teacher, tutor or staff member until outstanding checks have taken place.

#### Induction

All tutors, teachers, staff and deputy teachers are required to:

- 1. Sign to confirm that they have read, understood and agree to this document: Safeguarding Policy, Code of Practice, Procedures and Safer Recruitment.
- 2. Provide an **enhanced DBS with barred list** check, not more than 3 years old. If the above check cannot be provided, Bromley Conservatoire will initiate this check on their behalf. If they are part of the DBS update scheme, the initial certificate and update details must be provided.

3. Provide two forms of ID as outlined by the disclosure and barring service. Together, these must include their date of birth, photo and current address.

A safeguarding induction email is sent to all teachers, with the document "What to do if you are worried a child is being abused; advice for practitioners".

### **Annual Review**

To ensure ongoing safeguarding compliance, teachers, tutors, volunteers and staff members will be required to complete or provide the following annually:

- 1. Completion of a quiz to test safeguarding knowledge
- 2. 15-minute review with the DSL
- 3. A new DBS check if their current DBS check is over 3 years old. If they are on the DBS update scheme, the update service will be queried to check if anything has changed.

## **Policy Review**

We are committed to reviewing our policy annually.

The next review will happen no later than **1st September 2025**.

This document is approved by the Designated Safeguarding Lead named at the top of the document. The review of this document happens annually by all directors of Bromley Conservatoire.